
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting, Thursday, 14th March, 2019
   at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No. 4)

Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 17th January, 2019.

3 - 22



FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum 
 

23 - 32

(D) 8.  Schedule of Rates Price Increase for Gas Servicing and Maintenance 
Contract 
 

33 - 34

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM MEMBERS

Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman)
Barlow
Blezard
Brook
Heath
McEwan
Thurlow
Williams

Tenant Reps: Mandy Anderson
James Christie
Linda Craig
Allan McIntosh

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 6th March, 2019



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Thursday 17th January, 2019
at 2.00 p.m.

PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Blezard, Brook and McEwan.

Tenant Representative:- Mrs M. Anderson.

Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), Rebecca Halton 
(Business Support Manager) Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - 
Member Support) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Apprentice). 

29 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 (Minute No. 34) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

30 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 1st November, 2018 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

31 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Tenant Representatives Mrs J Christie, 
Ms L Craig and Mr A McIntosh. 

32 – Stock Condition Survey

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report updating Members on the 
progress made to date with regard to the appointment of a suitably qualified company 
to carry out a detailed survey of the Council’s Housing Stock in 2019/20.

She advised that at the meeting held on 1st November 2018, Members approved a 
provisional appointment of the No. 1 ranked surveying company in line with the 
Procure Plus Holdings mini competition issued on 23rd October 2018.

Procure Plus Holdings had provided Officers with a summary report of the mini 
competition tender outcome based on a review of the cost (50%) and written 
submissions (50%).  A copy of this report had been placed in the Members’ Room.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Tender bids had been submitted by:

• Elvet Construction Consultants;
• Michael Dyson Associates Ltd;
• Pick Everard; and
• Rand Associates Consultancy Services Ltd.

The submitted costs ranged from £96,493.00 (lowest bid) to £270,602.24 (highest 
bid).

The table below summarises the overall scores indicating Michael Dyson Associates 
as the No. 1 ranked Contractor. 

Members had been advised that Michael Dyson Associates had undertaken the 
previous two stock condition surveys and had undertaken the work in a diligent and 
professional manner.

An initial meeting with Michael Dyson Associates had taken place on 28th November 
2018 and Officers advised Members that the survey preparation works were 
underway. 

RECOMMENDED:- 

1. To agree the content and outcome of the mini competition results provided by 
Procure Plus Holdings; and

2. To retrospectively agree to the appointment of Michael Dyson Associates.

33 – Scrutiny of Sign-up Packs

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report providing an update on the 
Scrutiny of the Sign-up Packs used for signing up new Tenants to Barrow Borough 
Council Housing Service.

At the meeting on 1st November, 2018 Members had been requested to note that the 
Tenancy Sign-up Packs would be reviewed in line with the Scrutiny process through 
to stage four – Implementation and review.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



Members of the Tenants’ Scrutiny Working Party had now reviewed all of the 
documents used during the sign-up process and had agreed that health and safety 
information should also be included at the ‘sign-up stage’.  A copy of the new ‘Safety 
in the Home’ leaflet had been placed in the Members’ Room.

This review had concluded the Scrutiny of the Tenancy Sign-up Packs.  

The next area which would be reviewed by the Tenants’ Scrutiny Working Party 
would be Tenants’ and Residents’ Association Constitutions.  A further report would 
be brought to HMF once that review had commenced.

RECOMMENDED:- To note the content of the report and agree the implementation 
of a new ‘Safety in the Home’ leaflet from January 2019.

34 – 2019/23 Door Entry Contract, Smoke Alarm and Emergency Lighting 
Contract

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report regarding the door entry, smoke 
alarm and emergency lighting Contract which had been in operation since May 2014.  
Officers had prepared a new specification and Contract for the period April 2019 to 
March 2023 and wished to advise Members of the outcome of the recent Tender 
exercise.

The new Contract had been issued on an “open tender” basis to a range of suitably 
qualified Contractors on 23rd November, 2018.  The closing date for Tender 
submissions was 21st December, 2018.

The Tender had been conducted on the basis of 70% cost submission and 30% 
quality submission.  The quality element of the Tender included questions relating to 
equality and diversity, service delivery and health and safety.

A summary of the Contractors’ tendered costs and quality evaluation scores had 
been presented as follows:-

Members had been requested to note that Contractor No.1 had provided a Tender 
that contained details of the Company name/logo and was, in accordance with the 
Council’s procurement rules, returned to the Company unopened.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



RECOMMENDED:- To agree to the appointment of the highest ranked Contractor 
following the Tender returns received on 21st December, 2018.

35 – 2019/23 Staircase Cleaning Contract

The Assistant Director – Housing submitted a report regarding the staircase cleaning 
Contract which had been in operation since May 2014.  Officers had prepared a new 
specification and Contract for the period April 2019 to March 2023 and wished to 
advise Members of the outcome of the recent Tender exercise.

The new Contract had been issued on an “open tender” basis to a range of suitably 
qualified Contractors on 23rd November, 2018.  The closing date for Tender 
submissions was 7th December, 2018.

The Tender had been conducted on the basis of 70% cost submission and 30% 
quality submission.  The quality element of the Tender included questions relating to 
equality and diversity, service delivery and health and safety.

Members had been advised that this Contract had expired on 31st March, 2018.  In 
view of the Committee cycles, a management decision had been made to re-tender 
the Contract on the basis of the existing specification and companies that had 
previously expressed an interest in the work. 

A summary of the Contractors’ tendered costs and quality evaluation scores had 
been presented as follows:-

 Contractor No 1  Contractor No 2  Contractor No 3 

 £                44,425.39  £                62,183.00  £                              -   
PRICE EVALUATION SCORE 70 50 N/A
PRICE EVALUATION RANK 1 2  

QUALITY EVALUATION SCORE 21 17 N/A
QUALITY EVALUATION RANK 1 2  
PRICE QUALITY TOTAL SCORE 91 67 N/A

Members had been requested to note that only two Contractors had submitted 
Tenders.

RECOMMENDED:- To agree to the appointment of the highest raked Contractor 
following the Tender returns received on 7th December, 2018.

36 – Aids and Adaptations

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report regarding the appointment of a 
Contractor to undertake aids and adaptation improvements to the Council’s housing 
stock.  She advised that the existing service provider, Top Notch Contractors Ltd., 
had written to the Council in December advising that they would be unable to 
continue with the delivery of the Contract.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



On 25th August, 2016, Members had agreed to the appointment of Top Notch 
Contractors Ltd. to undertake aids and adaptation improvements to the Council’s 
housing stock.  The Contract had been issued under the terms and conditions of the 
2015/2019 Procure Plus framework.

Due to the limited time available to re-tender this work, Officers had requested 
Members’ approval to appoint DLP (Northern) Ltd for an interim period between 7th 
February, 2019 and 31st March, 2019.  That temporary arrangement would be 
awarded on the basis of the 2019/2023 Procure Plus framework and ensured 
Tenants would not be unduly affected by significant delays.

RECOMMENDED:- To agree to the appointment of DLP (Northern) Ltd to undertake 
disabled adaptation improvements on a temporary Contract arrangement between 
7th February, 2019 and 31st March, 2019.  The Contract would be awarded in line 
with the terms and conditions of the 2019/23 Procure Plus Holdings Framework.

37 – Housing Maintenance Investment Programme

The Assistant Director – Housing submitted a report with the purpose of agreeing the 
expenditure profile for 2019/2020.  The proposed profile and priorities had been 
based on the agreed five-year Asset Management Strategy 2015 and made 
reference to the findings of the 2014 Stock Condition Survey.

RECOMMENDED:-

1. To note the progress made on achieving and maintaining the Decent Homes 
Standard;

2. To agree the annual investment profile shown which had been appended to the 
report;

3. To agree continued delivery through Procure Plus;

4. To agree to the appointment of Richard Coates and Baker Mallet as exceptions 
under section 16 of the Council’s Standing Orders; and

5. To note the suggested investment profile as outlined in the report.

38 – Planned Investment and Planned Maintenance 2018/19 Expenditure

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Planned 
Investment and Planned Maintenance Programme for 2018/2019.  The information is 
attached at Appendix 1 to these Minutes.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



39 – Performance Information Report

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted information relating to the Housing 
Performance Indicators for 2018/2019 in comparison with previous years.  The 
information is attached at Appendix 2 to these Minutes.  

It was noted that the information provided had been limited as resources had been 
focused on year end and budget reporting, it had not been possible to validate all of 
the information which the Housing Management System (Cx) had returned.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

REFERRED ITEMS

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION

40 – Housing Revenue Account 2018/19

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report with the purpose agreeing a 
Housing Revenue Account Budget for the 2019/20 financial year.  Her report also 
provided details of the Expected Outturn Budget and balances for the current year.

She advised that several significant factors needed to be considered when drafting a 
HRA budget – one of which was the reduction in income due to the Government’s 
social rents policy to decrease rents by 1% over a four year period.  The financial 
year 2019/20 would be the fourth and final year in the period.  With that and 
continued Right to Buy, the reduction of income had been estimated at
£409k over 2018/19 and 2019/20 financial years.

Another significant factor was the introduction of Full Service of Universal Credit in 
December, 2018.  The full impact as yet was not known, however, from experience of 
other Authorities already on full service, it posed a considerable threat to the 
Council’s rental income in the future.

Members had been requested to note the Government’s indication that in 2020/21 
the end of the social rent decrease policy, social rents would be allowed to increase 
by CPI plus 1%, however, although that was relatively good news, the income would 
remain challenged with the full roll out of Universal Credit, the continued sale of 
Council properties through Right to Buy, increasing costs and inflation generally.

As such, the Council needed to keep focused on controlling expenditure to ensure 
there would be sufficient provision to maintain the stock, provide services which met 
Tenants’ aspirations and took into account the reducing number of dwellings.

1. Expected Outturn Budget 2018/19

The outturn for the year forecasted a net surplus of £24,050 after the budgeted 
contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £200,000.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2. Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2018/19

The above was likely to result in the following movement in balances.

2.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2018 £1,992,122

All Capital Schemes were on target for year-end and therefore no change was 
expected to the above reserve.

2.2   i) Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 2018 £1,274,720

Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                           £200,000

Forecast surplus                                                                 £24,050

Estimated Balance at year end                                        £1,498,770

ii) Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2018                         £1,000,000

There was no change expected in the fund balance in year.

2.3   Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2018  £6,502,530

Forecast Provision 2018/19    £816,520

Provision at year end £7,319,050

3. HRA Budget 2019/20 Proposal

The proposed budget for 2019/20 had been appended to the report and the 
following factors had been taken into account:

3.1 A further reduction of 1% on rental income for residential dwellings.

3.2 There had been a significant shift from Revenue to Capital Improvement 
Schemes in 2018/19 in the Housing Maintenance Budget; that had resulted in a 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked reserves in the year of £379,720.

3.3 A contingency of £50k had been retained in the draft budget which is referred to 
below. 

3.4 Bad debt provision increased by £42k over the £126k calculated budget. 

4.  Dwelling Rents

4.1 The effect on rents of the 1% reduction had been presented in the original 
report as follows:   

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



52 Weeks 48 Weeks Average Rent decrease 
over 48 weeks

2017/18 £75.36 £81.65 81 pence

2018/19 £74.61 £80.83

2019/20 £73.86 £80.02

2020/21 
increase CPI + 1% CPI + 1%

However, the Business Support Manager advised Members that due to the 
realisation that 2019/20 had 53 Mondays where rent would be charged, there 
had been a need to reconsider the approach and amend the rent charges 
accordingly.  

The immediate issue that had presented was that the four year reduction in rent 
by 1%, introduced by the Welfare Reform Act (2016), would be affected by the 
need to charge for an additional week’s rent (week 53), as the rent charged for 
the period 2019/20 would be higher than it had been for the period 2018/19, 
thus not achieving the decrease of 1% as expected.

That, along with a number of other factors, had been considered in deciding 
how best to deal with the additional week’s rent, in line with guidance published 
by the Local Government Association.

She reported that in order to charge Tenants for the additional week’s rent for 
the 2019/20 financial year, it would be necessary to increase dwelling rents by 
0.9% as the rent still needed to be collected over 48 weeks to ensure that the 
Council complied with the DWP Universal Credit regulations.

The increase ensured that Tenants would be charged for the 53 weeks and also 
took into account the 1% decrease introduced by the Welfare Reform Act 
(2016).  

The effect of the 0.9% increase on dwelling rents had been presented as 
follows:-

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks Average Rent increase 
over 48 weeks

2017/18 £75.23 £81.50 0.73p per week

2018/19 £74.41 £80.61

2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

2020/21 
increase CPI + 1% CPI + 1%

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



4.2 The expenditure within the HRA had been agreed through the democratic 
process, however, occasions had arisen which had resulted in under and 
overspends with the account.

As agreed in the 2018/19 budget report the use of the earmarked HRA reserve 
managed budget volatility as and when required within the parameter of the 
overall agreed budget.  £379,720 had been added for 2019/20 which related to 
housing maintenance programming.  

The HRA fund balance would be assessed by the Director of Resources.

5. Garage Charges

The Council had discretion to set the appropriate rent for garages. During 
2018/19 garage rents had been increased by 2% and that had not had an 
adverse affect in attracting new occupiers when they become vacant.  The 
Council had agreed a 2% increase in garage rents in 2019/20 which had been 
presented in the original report as follows:-.

No. 2016/17
2% inc 
2017/18

2% inc 
2018/19

2% inc. 
2019/20

Increased
Revenue
2019/20

Garage rate 1 27 £6.96 £7.10 £7.24 £7.38

Garage rate 2 451 £9.60 £9.79 £9.99 £10.19 £4,511

Total 478 £216,840 £221,135 £225,646 £230,157

However, the Business Support Manager advised Members that due to the 
realisation that 2019/20 had 53 Mondays where rent would be charged, and in 
order to charge Tenants the additional week’s rent, it had been necessary to 
increase garage rents over the 48 collectable weeks to account for that.  The 
increase was approximately 2%.

In view of the increased charges, it was considered that any further increase to 
the rents over and above that would potentially lead to increased voids and risk 
difficulty in re-letting garages.  For that reason, it had been proposed to only 
increase the rents to recover the additional week’s rent and not to apply any 
additional increase in 2019/20 as follows:-

No.
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20* Weekly Rent Increase

Garage rate 1 27 £7.10 £7.24 £7.38 14p

Garage rate 2 451 £9.79 £9.99 £10.18 19p

Total 478 £221,135 £225,646 £229,941

* Weekly charge over 48 weeks

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



6. Additional considerations

6.1 Service Charges e.g. Communal Area Cleaning

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be 
adjusted as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with 
no additional administrative costs.

6.2 Service and Facility Charges for Dispersed and Furnished Properties

The future funding of service charges had now been agreed and it would be 
exempt from UC and the charges could continue to be claimed by housing 
benefit.

The Assistant Director - Housing had suggested that the charges be increased 
as above (6.1) to reflect recovery of the cost of provision with no additional 
admin costs. 

6.3 Charges for enquiries in respect of re-sale of former Council property and 
charge for administration of leases

Following agreement earlier this year, some changes had been introduced for 
resale enquiries and leaseholder administration to ensure the Council recovered 
the costs to administer such activities.  It was envisaged the remainder of the 
charges would be introduced for the start of the next financial year 2019/20. 

6.4 Adelphi Court 

The block of 12 flats was leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme and under the terms of the lease it was recommend the annual 
rent charged of £40k remained unchanged for 2019/20.

6.5 ASB Action Ltd - Service Level Agreement 2019/20

The Council’s aim was to provide homes in good repair and on estates where 
people would like to live.

To enable the Housing Service to achieve that, effective management of anti-
social behaviour was imperative.

ASB Action Ltd. provided a specialist service assisting social housing providers 
to effectively deal with such issues, including specialist legal advice at short 
notice for a fixed fee ensuring value for money.

The Assistant Director - Housing recommended Members agreed to renew the 
annual Service Level Agreement with ASB Action Ltd. and suspend the 
requirement to obtain alternative quotes.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



The cost of a six-day Service Level Agreement, including training was £2,871 
plus VAT.

7. Priorities for the Year

During the financial year there would be several factors which would have an 
impact on the service.  To summarise:

7.1 Maintain a Balanced Housing Revenue Account
The proposals in the draft budget maintained the significant reductions made in 
2018/19 within the HRA.

The Government had now agreed that at the end of the current social rents 
policy, they would allow social landlords to increase their rents by CPI plus 1% 
in 2020/21 financial year.

Whilst that was positive news, the number of properties continued to reduce 
requiring the need for continuous financial control and consideration of the 
future models of service delivery. 

7.2 Housing Management System

Officers continued to progress the development of the Cx system which had 
gone live in November, 2017.  It was unfortunate that key personnel involved in 
the planning stages had left the Council during the implementation, taking with 
them the knowledge they gained over the course of the project.  A key post had 
now been filled and was successfully progressing the development of the Stage 
1 system.  Stage 2 delivery was now in the process of being resourced by 
Civica which should result in a number of improvements in the implementation.  
That would require ongoing external support and, as such, a contingency within 
the budget had been included to ensure that could continue.

Action: The development of the Cx system would continue as a key priority 
across the service during 2019/20. 

7.3 Welfare Changes and Income Collection

The full service roll out of Universal Credit had commenced on 5th December, 
2018.  

It was evident that Universal Credit would put a significant risk on the income 
the Council received and put increased pressure on the Operations Team to 
mitigate the effect to maximise income; rent collection would be a key priority for 
staff. 

Actions: Operations Team to adopt best practice to minimise the risk to the 
income of the service.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Impact of roll-out monitored and number of Operations staff reviewed 
depending on impact on rental income.

7.4 Water Rates Collection

The current contract to collect water charges with United Utilities ends March 
2019.  It was agreed at HMF on 13th September, 2018 that the contract be 
extended a further two years to assist with the maintenance of the HRA.  

The commission the Service would receive was c.£202k in 2019/20 and it was 
envisaged to be a similar amount in 2020/21.  United Utilities had not been 
able to confirm the amount as yet. 

Summary

The proposed budget provided assurance the Council could respond to ongoing 
reductions in income due to social rent policy in the next year.

The use of the earmarked HRA reserve gave a provision for flexibility in the Service 
as well as to ensure a balanced budget over the next financial year 2019/20 should 
additional reductions or efficiencies not be identified. 

RECOMMENDED:-

1. To note the Report;

2. To note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2018/19 would be a surplus of 
£24,050 after the budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £200,000; 

3. To note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2018/19;

4. To agree the basis on which the 2019/20 draft Budget had been proposed in 3.1 
to 3.4 of the report;

5. To agree that due to the realisation that 2019/20 had 53 Mondays where rent 
would be charged and that the rent still needed to be collected over 48 weeks to 
ensure that the Council complied with the DWP Universal Credit regulations, 
that:-

a)  The effect of the 0.9% increase on dwelling rents would be as follows:-

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks Average Rent increase 
over 48 weeks

2017/18 £75.23 £81.50 0.73p per week

2018/19 £74.41 £80.61

2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

2020/21 
increase CPI + 1% CPI + 1%

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



b) The effect of the approximate 2% increase in garage rents would be as 
follows:-

No. 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20* Weekly Rent Increase

Garage rate 1 27 £7.10 £7.24 £7.38 14p

Garage rate 2 451 £9.79 £9.99 £10.18 19p

Total 478 £221,135 £225,646 £229,941

6. To agree or note as outlined in 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 of the report, the other 
additional considerations. 

7. To agree the continuation of the Service Level Agreement with ASB Action Ltd 
and waive the normal procurement requirement in that instance (6.5 of the 
report); and

8. To agree the approach to matters raised in 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4 of the report.

The meeting closed at 2.35p.m.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

Arrears & Collection- Dwellings (exc. Dispersed) Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Qtr. 1          
2018/19

Current 
YTD

Qtr. 2 
2018/19

Qtr. 3 
2018/19 Current YTD Qtr. 4 

2018/19

£ Rent & Service Charges due (Including empty 
properties)         

£ Rent loss due to empty dwellings (voids)         

£ Rent collected from Current Tenants         

£ Rent collected from Former Tenants         

Total Rent collected as % of rent due         

£ Current Arrears       £523,203.45  

£ Former Arrears       £301,359.10  

£ Write Offs (Gross) £98,187 £71,297 £17,114 £53,318 £42,896 £11,476 £71,487  

No. tenants evicted for rent arrears 25 19 4 7 3 4 11  

£ Rent Arrears UC claimants         

Arrears & Collection - Other Properties         

£ Rent arrears Dispersed  (Homeless)       £4,071.31  

£ Rent arrears Garages       £6,194.25  

£ Rent Arrears Shops       £2,468.80  

£ rent loss due to empty Dispersed (Homeless)         

£ rent loss due to empty Garages         

£ rent loss due to empty Shops         

Voids & Lettings (General Needs)         

Total Dwellings         

Total number of re-lets 248 255 28 95 79 44 151  

%  of re-lets accepted on first offer 68.1% 63.1% 53.6% 58.9% 62.0% 50.0% 56.7%  

Number of re-lets that underwent Major Works 94 84 8 24 21 18 47  

Average relet time in days (Standard) 42 44 46 51 54 53 53  

Average re-let time in days (Major Works) 73 74 61 73 74 81 77  

Average re-let time in days (all re-lets) 53 54 50 57 60 65 60  

Number of units vacant and available for 
letting at period end 

        

Number of units vacant but unavailable for 
letting at period end 

        

No.Tenancies terminated         

Tenancy Turnover %         

ASB         
Number of new anti-social behaviour cases 
reported         

Number of closed successfully resolved ASB cases         
Number of closed unresolved anti-social behaviour 
cases         

Repairs & Maintenance         
Average number of calendar days taken to 
complete repairs         

Percentage of repairs completed at first visit         

% all responsive repairs completed on time         

Number Repair Orders completed         

Average Responsive repairs per property         
Appointments kept as a percentage of 
appointments made         

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



Major Works & Cyclical Maintenance Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Qtr. 1          
2018/19

Current 
YTD

Qtr. 2 
2018/19

Qtr. 3 
2018/19 Current YTD Qtr. 4 

2018/19
Percentage of dwellings with  a gas safety 
certificate renewed by anniversary         

Percentage of homes that fail to meet the Decent 
Homes Standard         

*Average SAP rating of dwellings at end of year 
(based on RD SAP 9.83)         

Homelessness FROM APRIL 2018         

Average days in temporary (dispersed) 
accommodation 77 58.8 37 50 42 37 57  

Average days in B&B accommodation 62 5.81 1.4 1.25 1.6 1.9 2  

Number of triage assessments  136 247 140 129 405  

Number of Homeless Prevention cases opened  46 72 37 36 119  

Number of Homeless Relief cases opened  28 62 34 37 99  

Number that failed to attend appointments Can provide from Qtr. 3 16   

Number of Successful Prevention cases  22 35 20 30 72  

Number of Successful Relief cases  9 35 27 17 53  

Number cases closed without successful outcome  6 13 15 15 36  
Number of decisions made that final duty is not 
owed  2 4 2 7 11  

Number owed the final duty
U

nable to provide as new
 com

parison 
due to new

 legislation

 1 1 1 2 4  

Employees         

Average permanent employee headcount 53 43 47 46 46 49 49  

Number of leavers 0 9 1 3 1 2 4  

Ave. working days lost / sickness absence 13.1 11.3 9.1 13.6 13.62 8.64 15.4  

Customer Complaints         
The number of Stage 1 complaints upheld in the 
year 4 3 0 2 3 2 5  

Water Charge Collection         

Total number of direct debit payers         

Number of rent agreements where a water 
support tariff or help to pay scheme is in place 562 552 not 

available 602 606 675 675  

Housing Register         
Cumbria Choice Register- Qtr. Reporting will be 
number of new apps, annual/YTD figure will be 
total number of apps

1186 1127 179 new 
apps 1434 171 new 

apps
190 new 
apps 1,409  

Housing Stock         

Houses 1223 1205 1203 1198 1196 1192 1,192  

Flats 1221 1218 1216 1215 1216 1214 1,214  

Bungalows 156 156 156 156 156 156 156  

General Needs Dwellings 2600 2579 2575 2569 2568 2562 2,562  

Dispersed 12 13 15 16 16 16 16  

Homeless (Cold Weather Provision) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0  

New Lives Project 2 2 2 2 2 2 2  

Adelphi Court 12 12 12 12 12 12 12  

Total Dwelling Stock 2627 2606 2604 2599 2598 2592 2,592  

Community Centres 5 5 5 5 4 4 4  

Leaseholds 212 215 215 215 216 218 218  

Garages 504 504 504 504 504 504 504  

Shops 19 19 19 19 19 19 19  

TOTAL PROPERTIES 3367 3349 3347 3342 3341 3337 3,337  

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



RTB & Land Values Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Qtr. 1          
2018/19

Current 
YTD

Qtr. 2 
2018/19

Qtr. 3 
2018/19 Current YTD Qtr. 4 

2018/19
£ Houses £1,170,025 £779,460 £64,200 £278,140 £331,590 £552,615 £552,615  

£ Flats £87,820 £47,700 £0 £0 £18,000 £60,500 £60,500  

£ Bungalows £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0  

£ Land £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0  

TOTAL £1,257,845 £827,160 £64,200 £278,140 £349,590 £613,115 £613,115  
Sold 

2017/18
Sold 
YTD

18 13

3 3

0 0

0 0

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



SCHEME PROCUREMENT TYPE
AVAILABLE

BUDGET
EXPENDITURE TO

DATE
ESTIMATED

START DATE
ESTIMATED

COMPLETION DATE CONTRACTOR COMMENTS
Leasholders

affected?
GREENGATE ESTATE RE-ROOFING

WORKS Procure Plus Holdings £450,000 £ 39,722 1.7.2018 31.3.2019 DLP Roofing ROOFING WORKS COMPLETE EXTERNAL
WORKS ONGOING No

WINDOW & DOOR REPLACEMENTS
VARIOUS HOUSING AREAS

Procure Plus Holdings
£200,000 £ 38,736

1.8.2018 31.3.2019 TOP NOTCH WORKS ON SITE No

WALNEY RENDER & DAMP PROOFING
WORKS

Procure Plus Holdings
£320,000 £ 69,137

1.7.2018 31.3.2019 DLP Roofing WORKS ON SITE Yes

DALTON ESTATE RE-ROOFING WORKS
Procure Plus Holdings

£120,000 £ 7,428
1.9.2018 31.3.2019 DLP Roofing WORKS ON SITE No

LOWER HINDPOOL RE-ROOFING
WORKS

Procure Plus Holdings
£150,000 £ 28,574

1.8.2018 31.3.2019 DLP Roofing WORKS ON SITE Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE LIGHTING
Procure Plus Holdings

£40,000 £ 33,097
1.10.2018 31.3.2019 K WILSON WORKS COMPLETE Yes

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings
£10,000 £ 37

1.9.2018 31.3.2019 GEORGE JONES WORKS ON SITE Yes

GARAGE IMPROVEMENTS Procure Plus Holdings
£20,000 £ 44,855

1.10.2018 31.3.2019 CUMBRIA ROOFING WORKS ON SITE No

REWIRES Procure Plus Holdings
£306,000 £ 189,189

1.7.2018 31.3.2019 K WILSON WORKS ON-GOING No

BATHROOMS Procure Plus Holdings
£207,000 £ 2,141

1.7.2018 31.3.2019 WRIGHT BUILD WORKS ON SITE No

HEATING Procure Plus Holdings
£420,000 £ 383,620

1.7.2018 31.3.2019 AFM GAS Ltd WORKS ON-GOING No

PAINTING Procure Plus Holdings
£180,000 £ 127,298

1.6.2018 31.3.2019 G JONES WORKS COMPLETE Yes

HOUSING MAINTENANCE COMMITMENTS 2018-19

Funding Available
EXPENDITURE TO

DATE Weekly Available Gross Comm. as a % funds available

Tenant Demand Repairs £ 1,346,426 £ 606,294 £ 25,893 45%
Voids £ 513,472 £ 558,812 £ 9,874 109%
Gas Servicing £ 302,106 £ 189,568 £ 5,810 63%
Decoration Vouchers £ 30,000 £ 11,905 £ 577 40%
Environmental Impmts £ 5,000 £ 10,727 £ 96 215%
Disabled Adaptations £ 100,000 £ 42,398 £ 1,923 42%
Electrical Testing £ 61,000 £ 69,540 £ 1,173 114%
Door Entry Maintenance £ 19,176 £ 1,711 £ 369 9%Gas - Building/Replacement £75,000.00 £12,905.00 17%

 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



             Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 14th March 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra Care Housing 
Forum

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to note the Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria 
Extra Care Housing Forum to support the delivery aims of the Extra Care 
Housing Forum.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to note the Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra 
Care Housing Forum. 

Report

The Joint Working Protocol, attached at Appendix 1, is a document between 
the District Councils, Cumbria County Council, the Lake District National Park 
Authority and Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority regarding the 
commissioning and delivery of Extra Care Housing in Cumbria.  It defines the 
intended respective roles and responsibilities of the Councils (reference 
Section 7 of the Protocol). 

Each District Council within Cumbria is the strategic lead for housing in its 
area and, as such, is responsible for identifying future housing need and 
working with partners, primarily Cumbria County Council, to deliver the need 
identified.

The County Council is responsible for commissioning and delivering social 
care in Cumbria including within Extra Care Housing.  The National Park 
Local Planning Authorities are responsible for carrying out specific planning 
functions for a particular area including developing planning policy, allocating 
land and assessing applications for development.

All the parties have agreed to work together to identify the need for and assist 
in the delivery of Extra Care Housing in the county.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



The protocol has been drawn up by the Extra Care Housing forum of which 
Barrow Borough Council Housing Service is a member, established under 
Cumbria Housing Group to facilitate joint working between the parties.

The protocol aims to provide a good working basis between the parties and to 
give a basis for each party to work in partnership for mutual benefit alongside 
retaining to pursue each party’s own objective.

There is a need for effective linkage between the key elements of housing and 
social care to ensure a seamless process for delivering Extra Care Housing 
by creating and responding to opportunities as they arise.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



1

Joint Working Protocol for the Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum

CONTENTS

             Page Number

1 Purpose 2

2 Background 2

3 Why we need a protocol and the delivery aims 3
 

4 Withdrawal Termination 4
 

5 Partnership 4
 

6 Parties 4

7 Definition of Terms 5

 
  

Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference
 

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



2

Joint Working Protocol

Between:

1. ALLERDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL, COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL, BARROW 
BOROUGH COUNCIL, SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL, EDEN DISTRICT 
COUNCIL and CARLISLE CITY COUNCIL (collectively the “District Councils”); 

AND

2. CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL (the “County Council”);

AND

3. LAKE DISTRICT NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AND YORKSHIRE DALES 
NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY (the “National Park Authorities”)

Jointly referred to as the “Parties” or individually as “Party”

DATE: 

1 PURPOSE OF PROTOCOL

1.1 To work better in partnership to support the delivery aims of the Extra 
Care Housing Forum as set out in the Terms of Reference (Appendix 1).   

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 This document is a protocol between the Parties regarding the 
commissioning and delivery of Extra Care Housing in Cumbria, and is 
referred to in this document as “the Protocol” or “this Protocol”.  It 
defines the intended respective roles and responsibilities of the Councils 
Definitions form Section 7 of this Protocol.  

2.2 Each District Council is the strategic lead for housing in its area and as 
such is responsible for identifying future housing need and working with 
partners particularly Cumbria County Council to deliver against that need. 

2.3 The County Council is responsible for commissioning and delivering social 
care in Cumbria including within Extra Care Housing.

2.4 The District Councils are responsible for assessing and meeting the 
housing needs within Extra Care Housing.

2.5 The National Park Local Planning Authorities are responsible for carrying 
out specific planning functions for a particular area including creating  
planning policy, allocating land and assessing applications for 
development

Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



3

2.6 The Parties have agreed to work together in order to identify the need for 
and aid the delivery of Extra Care Housing in the County.

2.7 This Protocol is produced by the Extra Care Housing Forum, established 
under the Cumbria Housing Group to facilitate joint working between the 
Parties.

2.8 This Protocol is intended to give a good working basis for the relationship 
between the Parties during the life of the Extra Care Housing Forum or 
any subsequent groups.  It aims to give a basis for each party to work with 
one another for mutual benefit, whilst also retaining freedom for both to 
pursue their own core objectives.  

3 THE NEED FOR A PROTOCOL AND ITS DELIVERY AIMS

3.1 There is a need for effective linkage between the key elements of housing 
and social care to ensure a seamless process for delivering Extra Care 
Housing and to create and respond to opportunities as and when they 
arise.  

 The Parties agree to establish regular meetings between key partners 
within their respective organisations at both strategic and operational 
levels including the Forum

3.2 The Parties will share their strategic priorities and seek to align them 
wherever possible to support the delivery of Extra Care Housing. To 
achieve this the Parties agree to:

 consult at an early stage on documents when being developed; 
 use the Forum to develop and respond to strategic priorities and 

initiatives; and
 use the Forum to discuss issues in a broader sense and share good 

practice.

3.3 The Parties will seek, where appropriate, agreement on local Extra Care 
Housing delivery priorities. To do this, the Parties will endeavour to: 

 facilitating early discussion and agreement on settlement areas, which is 
consistent with planning policy;

 agree, at an early stage, a suitable scale of delivery in each priority 
settlement area.  In some districts it may be appropriate also to consider 
delivery within housing market areas; and

 facilitate early discussion regarding content of S106 obligations.

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



4

3.4 The Parties will aim to achieve the early engagement of key partners, 
including internal and external partners. The Parties will involve Housing 
Benefit Teams, Planning Officers, NHS, developers, funders (e.g. Homes 
England) and Housing Associations to seek early buy-in of emerging 
projects

3.5 The Parties will aim to cooperate in the planning for and maximising of 
appropriate capital and revenue funding to ensure future viability and 
sustainability of new schemes. To do this, the Parties will endeavour to: 

 seek early identification of sources of capital and revenue funding, to 
facilitate the on-going dialogue with funders; and

 Co-ordinate capital and revenue funding between the District Councils 
and the County Council for each potential scheme or project

3.6 The Parties will aim to strengthen the relationships between the District 
Councils and the County Council at both Officer and Member levels by:

 Using the Forum, CHG, individual relationship with officers and portfolio 
holders;

 Hosting an event to promote the Protocol and  the Forum;
 Champion Extra Care Housing and the Forum within individual 

organisations; and
 Seek clarity of roles and responsibilities between the District Councils and 

the County Council.

4 WITHDRAWAL FROM PROTOCOL

4.1 Each of the Parties may withdraw from this Protocol subject to giving a 
minimum of one month’s notice to the other Parties.

5 PARTNERSHIP

5.1 Nothing in this Protocol is intended to create any legal partnership 
between the Parties.

5.2 This Protocol is not meant to be binding nor create any legal obligations 
on the Parties.  It is simply a statement of intentions.

And the Parties confirm hereby their intention to keep to the terms of this Protocol 
by signing below:

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



5

Signed for and on behalf of Allerdale Borough Council:

……………………………………………………………………………………….Date…………………………………..

Signed for and on behalf of Copeland Borough Council:

………………………………………………………………………………………..Date…………………………….......

Signed for and on behalf of Barrow Borough Council:

………………………………………………………………………………………..Date………………………………….

Signed for and on behalf of Eden District Council:

…………………………………………………………………………………………Date…………………………………

Signed for and on behalf of Carlisle City Council:

………………………………………………………………………………………..Date………………………………….

Signed for and on behalf of South Lakeland District Council:

………………………………………………………………………………………..Date………………………………….

Signed for and on behalf of Cumbria County Council 

…………………………………………………………………………………………Date…………………………………

Signed for and on behalf of Lake District National Park Authority

………………………………………………………………………………………….Date………………………………..

Signed for and on behalf of Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority

…………………………………………………………………………………………..Date……………………………….

6 DEFINITION OF TERMS

Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



6

6.1 In this Protocol the following words and expressions have the following 
definitions:

“Extra Care Housing” Extra Care Housing is a term used to describe 
housing developments with design features and 
support services to enable people to care for 
themselves and continue to live independently. 
People who live in extra care housing have their 
own self-contained homes, with a lounge, kitchen, 
bedroom and bathroom and have a legal right to 
occupy the property. 24 hour care and support 
services are available onsite in order to provide 
both responsive and scheduled access to support as 
it is required.

“Party” A party to this Protocol

“Forum” The group formed to progress delivery of extra care 
housing in the County under the Terms of 
Reference set out at Appendix 1

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



7

Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum - Terms of Reference
The Aim: 
To develop an approach that enables the District Authorities and County Council to work strategically together in 
a timely manner to facilitate the delivery of extra care housing across Cumbria.

The Purpose of the group
To provide a forum

 To enable focused discussion in a collaborative manner
 To ensure the correct stakeholders are engaged
 To develop and agree on an effective and workable procedure {Joint working protocol]
 To actively monitor the procedure

Key Areas of Work
 Clarify the need and demand – using an agreed method.
 Set out a clear processes/procedures for referrals
 Discuss and agree the appropriateness of nomination agreements and who should be involved, what 

needs to be included in future commissioning plans and identify the impact/risks. 
 Clarifying funding arrangements – capital and revenue
 Cumbria County Council plans
 Establish a protocol for delivery of new developments 
 Share good practice and promoting/marketing extra care housing.

The Process

The Group will meet at least every 3 months with meetings being coordinated to support the Cumbria Housing Group.  

The group will progress the work-stream in phases. 

1. Joint working protocol/SLA
2. Need and Demand
3. Allocations and Nominations Agreement. 

APPENDIX 1
P

age 31

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



8

4. Establish a review, learning and good practice.
5. Marketing and Education of ECH in Cumbria.

The accountability

Via the Cumbria Housing Group and CCC Extra Care Housing Programme Board
How progress will be monitored

Captured in the Cumbria Housing & Wellbeing Action Plans and update to Cumbria Housing Supply Group.
Core Membership

 District and County Council Strategic Lead Officers
 Representative of Yorkshire Dales National Park Planning Authority
 Representative of Lake District National Park Planning Authority

Wider Group Membership

 Registered Providers
 Private Sector Providers
 Care and Support Providers
 Legal – respective organisations

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



  Part One 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 14th March 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Schedule of Rates Price Increase for Gas Servicing and 
Maintenance Contract

Summary and Conclusions: 

At your meeting held on 11th June 2015, Members agreed to the appointment 
of Sure Group to provide gas maintenance services for Council Tenants. 

The procurement was facilitated by Procure Plus Holdings under OJEU 
(Official Journal of the European Union procedures).  The Contract notice was 
issued on the 26th March 2015 (Reference - 2015/S 063-111151).

In November 2019, the Contract will have been operational for a period of four 
years and, during this time, the initial costs provided by Sure Group have 
remained unchanged.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to agree a 2.4% increase on the schedule of rate items 
and preliminary costs contained in the 2015 Gas Servicing and Maintenance 
Contract (Sure Group) in line with the evaluation and recommendations 
provided within this report by Procure Plus Holdings.

Report

In November 2018, Officers received a request form Sure Group to “uplift” the 
Contract costs (Schedule of Rate items and Preliminary Costs) in line with 
inflation. 

Officers wish to advise Members that following a review of the proposals by 
Procure Plus Holdings, a number of key cost increases have been identified:

 Labour – From October 2017 directly employed staff from Sure Group 
received a minimum cost of living pay increase of 2%, with the majority 
receiving significantly higher increases in order to stay in line with rates 
offered in the local market with average pay increase 2.86%

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



Comment from Procure Plus Holdings: 2% to 2.86% increase over the 
term does not appear unreasonable.

 Fuel – Diesel prices from May 2017 (mid point) initial three-year contract 
£1.18 to £1.31 per litre (December 2018) have increased 10%.
Comment from Procure Plus Holdings: Fuel costs remain volatile 
over the past three years dropping to £1.01 per litre in January 2016 
rising to £1.40 over the three year period and dropping back to £1.31 
in December 2018. 

 Materials - Sure Group have provided Procure Plus Holdings details from 
City Plumbing which give an average price increase of 2.48%  with some 
regularly used replacement parts, such as Fans and PCBs – increasing by 
as much as 15% between 2016/2017 and 2017/2018. 
Comment from Procure Plus Holdings:  The Contractor has incurred 
price rises across a range of products; in particular replacement 
spares.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has minor legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no additional risk implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has some financial implications for the Housing 
Revenue Account.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no additional health and safety implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 34

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	HMFPERFORMANCEINFO APPENDIX 1
	HMF17JAN APPENDIX 2

	7 Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum
	Appendix to Joint Working Protocol report

	8 Schedule of Rates Price Increase for Gas Servicing and Maintenance Contract

